# **CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL**

Minutes of a meeting of the **Southern Planning Committee** held on Wednesday, 21st August, 2013 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

#### PRESENT

Councillor M J Weatherill (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, R Cartlidge, W S Davies, P Groves, D Marren, M A Martin, S McGrory, D Newton and A Thwaite

## NON-COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillors R Domleo, M Grant and P Nurse

#### **OFFICERS PRESENT**

Nigel Curtis (Principal Development Officer - Highways) Rachel Goddard (Senior Lawyer) Ben Haywood (Principal Planning Officer) Chris Hudson (Principal Forestry and Arboricultural Officer) Steven Knowles (Affordable Housing Officer) David Malcolm (Southern Area Manager – Development Management) Anthony Sackfield (Affordable Housing Officer) Julie Zientek (Democratic Services Officer)

## **Apologies**

Councillors G Merry, D Bebbington, P Butterill, J Clowes and A Kolker

## 44 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

With regard to application number 13/2136C, Councillor R Bailey declared that she was a member of the Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE), which was objecting to the application, but that she had not been contacted and had kept an open mind. In addition, as a Ward Councillor, she had participated in discussions regarding a previous application. Councillor Bailey also declared that the applicant and objectors had contacted her and that she had been present when Church Lawton Parish Council had considered the application but had not participated in the discussion.

With regard to application number 12/4741N, Councillor P Groves declared that he considered he had pre-determined the application. Councillor Groves declared that he would exercise his separate speaking rights as a Councillor and withdraw from the meeting during consideration of this item.

With regard to application number 13/2322N, Councillor P Groves declared that he had been appointed as a Council representative on the Board of Wulvern Housing but that he had not participated in the discussions at Wulvern Housing with respect to this application and therefore felt comfortable declaring his appointment to Wulvern, staying in the room and participating in the decision.

All Members of the Committee declared that they had received correspondence regarding application number 13/2501C.

## 45 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That, subject to the deletion of the words 'at the site itself' in the second paragraph of minute 39, the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

46 13/2529N LAKESIDE SUPERBOWL, UNIT 1, PHOENIX LEISURE PARK, DUNWOODY WAY, CREWE CW1 3AJ: CHANGE OF USE OF PART OF THE BUILDING, FROM CLASS D2 (LEISURE) TO CLASS A3 (RESTAURANTS), WITH EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS TO CREATE INDIVIDUAL GLAZED SHOPFRONTS TO THE FRONTAGE AND DOORWAYS TO THE REAR AND PROVISION OF RAMPED AND STEPPED WALKWAY TO THE NORTH OF THE BUILDING TO IMPROVE ACCESSIBILITY TO THE TOWN CENTRE FOR ALBERMARLE PROPERTY OPPORTUNITIES LLP

Note: Mr D White (objector) and Mr A Hume (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

Note: Councillor M Grant had registered her intention to address the Committee on behalf of the Ward Councillor but arrived at the meeting during consideration of this application.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update. The Southern Area Manager – Development Management also reported comments that had been received from Crewe Town Council.

RESOLVED – That consideration of this matter be DEFERRED to a future meeting of the committee, to enable officers to provide further information regarding the potential impact of the proposed development on trees and Crewe town centre, particularly cafes.

## 47 13/2501C LAND OFF A34 NEWCASTLE ROAD, CONGLETON, CHESHIRE: ERECTION OF UP TO 9NO. RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS (OUTLINE) WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS FOR ASTBURY MERE DEVELOPMENT LTD

Note: Councillor R Domleo (Ward Councillor), Town Councillor A Martin (on behalf of Congleton Town Council), Mr P Minshull (objector) and Ms J

Bailey (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, a written update and an oral report of the site inspection. The Southern Area Manager – Development Management also reported that the reference to the Environment Agency under the heading 'Consultations (External to Planning)' was an error.

RESOLVED – That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

The development would result in the loss of a Protected Area of Open Space contrary to the requirements of Policy RC2 of the adopted Congleton Borough Local Plan First Review 2005.

48 13/2427C LAND OFF CONGLETON RD, SMALLWOOD, SANDBACH, CHESHIRE CW11 2YH: ERECTION OF 14NO. ONE AND TWO STOREY HOMES, INCLUDING 11 AFFORDABLE UNITS FOR LOCAL NEED AND FOOTPATH LINK TO SCHOOL LANE, CONSTRUCTION OF VEHICULAR ACCESS TO HIGHWAY, CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO A CAR PARK TO BE ALLOCATED TO SMALLWOOD PRIMARY SCHOOL AND OPEN SPACE TO BE GIFTED TO SMALLWOOD PARISH COUNCIL FOR MR ANDREW GARNETT, MCI DEVELOPMENTS, PLUS DANE GROUP AND BRIAN BRACEGIRDLE

Note: Mr D Whitney attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED – That authority be DELEGATED to the Planning and Place Shaping Manager in consultation with the Chairman to approve the application for the reasons set out in the report, subject to:

- (a) the satisfactory completion of a Unilateral Undertaking to secure affordable housing and public open space
- (b) no adverse comments being received with respect to the outstanding grassland report
- (c) the following conditions:
- 1. Time (Standard)
- 2. Plans
- 3. Materials Details to be submitted
- 4. Hours of construction
- 5. Hours of piling
- 6. Prior submission of a Piling Method Statement

- 7. Prior submission of an Environmental Management Plan
- 8. Prior submission of a scheme to minimise dust emissions
- 9. PD Removal (A to D)
- 10. Landscaping (Details)
- 11. Landscaping (Implementation)
- 12. Tree retention
- 13. Tree protection implementation
- 14. Arboricultural Method Statement
- 15. Boundary treatment
- 16. Breeding birds

# 49 12/4741N LAND AT COG TRAINING AND CONFERENCE CENTRE, CREWE ROAD, NANTWICH, CHESHIRE: APPLICATION TO ERECT 59 DWELLINGS AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT LAND AT COG TRAINING CENTRE, CREWE ROAD, NANTWICH FOR DAVID MAJOR, STEWART MILNE HOMES NORTH WEST ENGLAND

Note: Prior to consideration of this application, the meeting was adjourned for ten minutes for a break.

Note: Having exercised his separate speaking rights as a Ward Councillor, Councillor P Groves withdrew from the meeting during consideration of this item.

Note: Ms T Humphreys (objector) had not registered her intention to address the Committee. However, in accordance with paragraph 2.8 of the public speaking rights at Strategic Planning Board and Planning Committee meetings, the Committee agreed to allow Ms Humphreys to speak.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That authority be DELEGATED to the Planning and Place Shaping Manager in consultation with the Chairman to approve the application for the reasons set out in the report, subject to:

- (a) confirmation of the Public Open Space contribution
- (b) the satisfactory completion of a Section 106 agreement to secure:
  - 18 affordable dwellings, with 11 being provided as social or affordable rent and 7 provided as a form of intermediate tenure.
  - Transfer of any rented affordable units to a Housing Association
  - Affordable homes to be let or sold to people who are in housing need and have a local connection. (The local connection criteria used in the agreement to match the Councils allocations policy.)

- Provision for a local residents management company to maintain the on-site amenity space / play area
- Primary Education Contribution of £119,309
- Contribution of £88,500 towards level crossing improvements
- Public Open Space Contribution (amount to be confirmed)
- £100,000 contribution to the design improvement schemes planned by CEC Highway Authority for the A51/A534 roundabout.
- (c) the following conditions:
- 1. Standard 3 year time limit
- 2. Compliance with approved plans
- 3. Submission and approval of materials including surfacing materials
- 4. Submission of Environmental Management Plan
- 5. Submission and approval of contaminated land mitigation measures
- 6. Dust control measures
- 7. Piling hours to be restricted
- 8. Piling method Statement
- 9. Submission and approval of external lighting details
- 10. Construction Hours to be restricted
- 11. Bin Storage
- 12. Submission and approval of boundary treatment
- 13. Submission and approval of landscaping
- 14. Implementation of landscaping
- 15. Provision of Parking
- 16. Access works to be carried out prior to first occupation
- 17. Tree Protection
- 18. Implementation of Tree protection
- 19. Arboricultural Method Statement to be submitted and agreed
- 20. Special construction measures under trees
- 21. Surface Water runoff to mimic that of existing site
- 22. Submission of scheme of sustainable urban drainage
- 23. Submission of a Scheme to limit surface water run-off
- 24. Submission of a scheme to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow
- 25. Removal of Permitted Development Rights
- 26. Breeding bird survey prior to work in nesting season
- 27. Provision of bat and bird boxes
- 28. Retention of trees T20 and T25
- 29. Detailed suite of design plans for the proposed junction arrangement with the A534 Crewe Road to the satisfaction of the LPA.
- 30. Detailed suite of design plans for the internal site layout to the satisfaction of the LPA. These plans will inform the S38 Highways agreement for adoption purposes.
- 31. Relocation of parking bays 53 and 52

32. Submission of detail to garage elevations on plots 1 and 59

## 50 12/4771C HIGHER HOUSE FARM, KNUTSFORD ROAD, CRANAGE CW4 8EF: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AS DESCRIBED WITHIN THE PLANNING APPLICATION SUBMISSION AND ERECTION OF 11NO. FAMILY DWELLINGS CHANGE OF USE FROM HAULAGE YARD TO RESIDENTIAL FOR MEREPARK DEVELOPMENTS

Note: Councillor R Cartlidge left the meeting during consideration of this item.

Note: Ms C Payne attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, an oral report of the site inspection and an oral update by the Southern Area Manager – Development Management where figures for contributions were given and it was explained that for CIL regulation purposes these were necessary, related to the development and were reasonable.

RESOLVED – That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to:

(a) the satisfactory completion of a S106 agreement to secure the following financial contributions towards public open space and CYPP and ongoing maintenance of the facilities:

Amenity Greenspace Enhanced Provision: £2,905.65 Maintenance: £6,503.75

Children and Young Persons Provision Enhanced Provision: £ 5,036.35 Maintenance: £16,417.50

- (b) the following conditions:
- 1. Standard
- 2. Amended Plans
- 3. Delivery of 3 affordable units (2 social / affordable rent and 1 for intermediate tenure)
- 4. Materials
- 5. Landscaping
- 6. Implementation of Landscaping
- 7. Boundary Treatment
- 8. Removal of Permitted Development Rights for extensions
- 9. Obscured glazing and removal of permitted development rights for openings
- 10. Contaminated Land Condition (Phase II)

- 11. Jodrell Bank Electromagnetic Screening Measures
- 12. Submission / approval and implementation of access drawings
- 13. Submission / approval and implementation of visibility splays
- 14. Provision of parking
- 15. Compliance with submitted noise mitigation.
- 16. Construction Hours restricted
- 17. Breeding bird survey of works are carried out within the bird nesting season
- 18. Details of drainage to be submitted
- 19. Details of pile driving
- 20. Surfacing Materials
- 21. Details of existing / proposed and finished levels

Informative: The high voltage cable to be put underground in accordance with appropriate regulations.

## 51 13/2136C RECTORY FARM, KNUTSFORD ROAD, CHURCH LAWTON, STOKE-ON-TRENT ST7 3EQ: OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR DEMOLITION OF HOUSE, GARAGE, BARNS AND OUTBUILDINGS, REMOVAL OF HARDSTANDING AND CONSTRUCTION OF HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FOR NORTHWEST HERITAGE

Note: Councillor R Cartlidge returned during consideration of this item but after returning did not take part in the debate or vote.

Note: Parish Councillor B Adams (on behalf of Church Lawton Parish Council), Mr B Weatherley (on behalf of a local representative group), Mr R Yates and Honorary Alderman R Giltrap (objectors), and Mr I Pleasant and Mr Byatt (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, an oral report of the site inspection and an oral update by the Southern Area Manager – Development Management.

- 1. Standard outline
- 2. Submission of reserved matters
- 3. Approved plans including amended plans and access detail
- 4. Contaminated land Phase II investigation to be submitted
- 5. 30% Affordable Housing Delivery of 3 affordable units (2 social / affordable rent and 1 for intermediate tenure).
- 6. Scheme to deliver on site Public Open Space and managed by a management company with details of future maintenance responsibilities
- 7. Hours of construction
- 8. Details of pile driving operations

- 9. Submission of scheme to demonstrate that floor levels of proposed buildings are set no lower than 85.0 m AOD
- 10. Submission of scheme to demonstrate that road levels are set no lower than 84.7 m AOD
- 11. Scheme to limit surface water runoff
- 12. Submission of scheme to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow
- 13. Sustainable Urban Drainage System
- 14. Only foul drainage to be connected to sewer
- 15. Retention of important trees
- 16. Updated Protected species survey to be submitted with any subsequent Reserved Matters applications
- 17. Timing of the works and details of mitigation measures to ensure that the development would not have a detrimental impact upon breeding birds.
- 18. Scheme for incorporation of features into the detailed scheme for use by breeding birds
- 19. Archaeological developer-funded watching brief to be carried out
- 20. Environmental management plan including scheme for dust control to be submitted
- 21. Submission of scheme to upgrade to the existing footpaths fronting the site to create footpath widths of 2.0 metres
- 22. Submission of streetlighting scheme for Old Knutsford Road to a convenient point north of the proposed access and include for 30mph speed limit signs to the southern approach
- 23. Levels to be submitted with Reserved matters
- 24. Scale of dwellings to be limited to 2 storey dormer properties.
- 25. Development limited to 9 dwellings.

#### 52 13/2187C LAND ADJACENT 5 MIDDLEWICH ROAD, CRANAGE, CHESHIRE CW4 8HG: EXTENSION TO TIME LIMIT FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF APPLICATION 11/0748C - RESERVED MATTERS APPLICATION FOR 10 DWELLINGS FOR CRANAGE PARISH COUNCIL

Note: The Southern Area Manager – Development Management read a statement submitted by Councillor A Kolker, who was unable to attend the meeting.

Note: Mr J Halstead and Mrs J Wild (objectors) and Mr I Pleasant (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral update by the Southern Area Manager – Development Management.

- 1. Reserved Matters to be submitted or in accordance with reserved matters 11/0748C
- 2. Reserved Matters to be submitted within 3 years or in accordance with reserved matters 11/0748C
- 3. Commencement of development within 3 years of this permission or 2 years following approval of last of reserved matters
- 4. Housing to be 100% affordable in perpetuity
- 5. Compliance with parking standard agreed at Reserved Matters stage
- 6. Prior to first use, visibility splays to be provided at the access
- 7. Landscaping to be implemented in the first planting season following occupation or completion
- 8. Details of boundary treatment to be submitted
- 9. Contaminated Land Assessment top be submitted
- 10. Submission of scheme to protect dwellings from traffic noise
- 11. Hours of construction restricted
- 12. Submission of an Air Quality Assessment
- 13. Hours of piling restricted
- 14. Submission of details of anti-radio interference materials
- 15. Submission of details of foul and surface water drainage
- 16. Submission of details of external materials and finishes
- 17. Dwelling to be set-out and finished floor levels
- 18. Removal of Permitted Development Rights for Classes A-E (extensions, alterations and outbuildings)
- 19. Removal of Permitted Development Rights for gates, walls and fences

## 53 13/2322N SIR WILLIAM STANIER COMMUNITY SCHOOL, LUDFORD STREET, CREWE CW1 2NU: RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FOR RENEW LAND DEVELOPMENTS LTD

Note: Councillors D Marren, M Martin and D Newton left the meeting prior to consideration of this application.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to:

- (a) the satisfactory completion of a S106 agreement to secure:
  - £30,000 for improving the existing children's play area and footpath off Cranborne Road, off Middlewich Street, Crewe
  - £130,155 towards primary education provision.
  - 30% of the total dwellings on site should be provided as affordable, split on the basis of 65% social or affordable rent and 35% intermediate tenure
  - an affordable housing scheme to be submitted at reserved matters stage that includes:
    - full details of the affordable housing on site

- Pepper-potting of affordable units
- Mix of houses and flats
- details of when the affordable housing is to be delivered
  To be no later than occupation of 50% of the open market units.
- transfer any rented affordable units to a Registered Provider
- the affordable homes to be let or sold to people who are in housing need and have a local connection. The local connection criteria used in the agreement should match the Councils allocations policy.
- All the Affordable homes should be constructed in accordance with the Homes and Communities Agency Design and Quality Standards (2007) and should achieve at least Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes (2007).
- (b) the following conditions:
- 1. Standard outline timescale
- 2. Standard outline
- 3. Approved plans
- 4. Construction of Access
- 5. Provision of 200% parking
- 6. Submission of a surface water regulation scheme,
- 7. Submission of a scheme to manage the risk of flooding from overland flow
- 8. Submission of infiltration tests
- 9. For discharges of surface water to mains sewer above the allowable rate, submission of attenuation for up to the 1% annual probability event, including allowances for climate change.
- 10. Submission of details of Sustainable Urban Drainage System (SuDS)
- 11. Submission, approval and implementation of travel plan
- 12. Submission, approval and implementation of scheme to minimise dust emissions arising from demolition / construction activities
- 13. Submission, approval and implementation of details of bin storage
- Piling operations shall be restricted to: Monday Friday 09:00 17:30 hrs; Saturday 09:00 – 13:00 hrs; Sunday and Public Holidays Nil
- 15. Submission, approval and implementation of piling method statement
- Hours of construction shall be restricted to Monday Friday 08:00 to 18:00 hrs; Saturday 09:00 to 14:00 hrs; Sundays and Public Holidays Nil
- 17. Submission, approval and implementation of details of external lighting
- 18. Submission, approval and implementation of an acoustic assessment report detailing any measures required to mitigate the identified noise sources within the proposed development.
- 19. Submission, approval and implementation of an updated contaminated land Phase I report to assess the actual/potential

contamination risks at the site shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority (LPA).

- 20. Should the updated Phase 1 report recommend that a Phase II investigation is required, a Phase II investigation shall be carried
- 21. Should the Phase II investigations indicate that remediation is necessary, a Remediation Statement shall be submitted. The remedial scheme in the approved Remediation Statement shall then be carried out.
- 22. Should remediation be required, a Site Completion Report shall be submitted
- 23. Detailed breeding bird survey
- 24. Features for use by breeding birds and bats
- 25. Submission and approval of materials
- 26. Submission and approval of cycle parking within scheme
- 27. Submission and approval of boundary treatment
- 28. Submission and approval of landscaping
- 29. Implementation of landscaping
- 30. Limit development to maximum of 84 dwellings
- 31. Provision of pedestrian cycle/link to Newdigate Street

#### 54 13/2527N LAND AT NEWTOWN, NEWTOWN ROAD, SOUND, NANTWICH, CHESHIRE, CW5 8BX: VARIATION OF APPROVED PLANS - CONDITION 2 OF APPLICATION 12/0267N FOR PAUL BRADBURY

Note: Parish Councillor Dr P Griffiths (on behalf of Sound and District Parish Council), Mr D Lowe (on behalf of a local representative group), Mr R High (objector), and Mr R Lee (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

Note: Parish Councillor A Baldwin had registered his intention to address the Committee on this matter but did not speak.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

- 1. Time (3 years)
- 2. Plans
- 3. Prior submission of facing and roofing details
- 4. Prior submission of hard or soft surfacing materials
- 5. Prior submission of landscaping scheme
- 6. Implementation of approved landscaping scheme
- 7. Prior submission of drainage
- 8. Prior submission of boundary treatment
- 9. Obscure glazing (x2)
- 10. Hours of construction
- 11. PD removal for extensions to the East and West elevations

- 12. Nesting birds
- 13. Implementation of tree protection plan
- 14. Any gate, bollard, chain or other means of obstruction across the approved access should be inset by 5.5 metres from public highway
- 15. Visibility splays of 2 metres by 25 metres to the east and 2 metres by 35 metres to the west of the proposed access onto Newtown Road shall be provided with no obstruction within the splay above 1 metre in height.

## 55 13/2571N ORCHARD BARN, NEWCASTLE ROAD, BLAKELOW, CHESHIRE CW5 7ET: NEW ENTRANCE ROAD FOR THE BARN FOR MR & MRS PAUL MILLER

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED – That authority be DELEGATED to the Planning and Place Shaping Manager in consultation with the Chairman to approve the application for the reasons set out in the report, subject to no adverse comments being received with respect to the outstanding arboricultural information

and the following conditions:

- 1. Standard
- 2. Plans
- 3. Surfacing Materials
- 4. Details of the Access Gate
- 5. Landscaping along eastern boundary to be submitted
- 6. Landscaping along eastern boundary to be implemented

#### 56 13/2596N ORCHARD BARN, NEWCASTLE ROAD, BLAKELOW, CHESHIRE CW5 7ET: NEW DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE BLOCK WITH INTEGRATED GARDEN STORE AND LOFT STORAGE AREA FOR MR & MRS PAUL MILLER

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED – That, for the reasons set out in the report and the written update, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Standard
- 2. Plans
- 3. Materials to be submitted and approved in writing

## 57 13/2653C 7, HEATH AVENUE, SANDBACH, CHESHIRE CW11 2LD: A 1 STOREY EXTENSION TO ACCOMMODATE DISABLED PARENTS FOR A PATRICK

Note: Councillor S Corcoran (Ward Councillor) had registered his intention to address the Committee on this matter but was not in attendance at the meeting.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

The Southern Area Manager – Development Management reported that the application had been called in for determination by the Committee by Councillor S Corcoran, the Ward Councillor, and read a statement submitted by Councillor Corcoran.

RESOLVED – That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Time; A03FP
- 2. Plans; A01AP
- 3. Materials; A03EX
- 4. The Extension hereby permitted shall form part of the existing residential unit and shall not be occupied as a separate unit of accommodation independent from the main dwelling house.
- 5. Notwithstanding details, boundary fencing to be 2m in height (not 2.2m)

# 58 13/2732C 61, HASSALL ROAD, SANDBACH, CHESHIRE CW11 4HN: TWO NON-ILLUMINATED SIGNS AT LEIGH GREEN DEVELOPMENT FOR DAVID MAJOR, STEWART MILNE HOMES

Note: Councillor S Corcoran (Ward Councillor) had registered his intention to address the Committee on this matter but was not in attendance at the meeting.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a statement submitted by Councillor Corcoran which was read out by the Southern Area Manager – Development Management.

- 1. Consent granted for a period of up to 2 years
- 2. All advertisements displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.
- 3. Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.
- 4. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity.

- 5. No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.
- 6. No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to;
- a) Endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, or aerodrome (civil or military);
- b) Obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or to aid navigation by water or air; or
- c) Hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.
- 7. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans

The meeting commenced at 1.00 pm and concluded at 6.33 pm

Councillor M J Weatherill (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair)